
Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 1 of 12 

Minutes 
Volusia County Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 
October 27, 2009 

 
2570 W. International Speedway Boulevard, Suite 120 

Daytona Beach, FL 32114-8145 
 
Members Present:      Representing: 
Commissioner John McDonald    Beverly Beach 
Commissioner Robert Gilliland    Daytona Beach 
Mayor Greg Northrup      Daytona Beach Shores 
Council Member Jack Lenzen     DeBary 
Commissioner Leigh Matusick    DeLand 
Commissioner Janet Deyette     Deltona 
Commissioner Ron Vath     Flagler Beach 
Mayor Joan Duffy       Lake Helen 
Commissioner Lynne Plaskett     New Smyrna Beach 
Mayor Fred Costello      Ormond Beach 
Mayor James Sowell      Pierson 
Council Member Kris Derr     Ponce Inlet 
Vice- Mayor Mary Martin     Port Orange 
Council Member Joshua Wagner    Volusia County 
Council Member Andy Kelly     Volusia County  
Council Member Jack Hayman    Volusia County 
County Chair Frank Bruno     Volusia County 
Council Member Joie Alexander    Volusia County 
Mary Schoelzel (non-voting)     FDOT District V 
Diane J. Smith (non-voting)     Volusia County School Board 
Mike Chuven (non-voting)      BPAC Chairman 
Doug Gutierrez (non-voting)     TCC Chairman 
 
Members Absent:      Representing: 
Councilman Ted Cooper (excused)    Edgewater 
Commissioner Liz Towsley (excused)    Holly Hill 
Commissioner Bill Marcello (excused)   Oak Hill 
Vice-Mayor Jeff Allebach     Orange City 
Council Member George Locke    South Daytona 
Council Member Pat Northey (excused)   Volusia County 
P.J. Arvidson (non-voting) (excused)           CAC Chairperson 
 
Others Present:      Representing: 
Pamela Blankenship, Recording Secretary   MPO Staff 
Karl Welzenbach      MPO Staff 
Bob Keeth       MPO Staff 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 2 of 12 

Others Present:      Representing: 
Jean Parlow       MPO Staff 
Stephan Harris      MPO Staff 
Lois Bollenback      MPO Staff 
Carole Hinkley       MPO Staff 
R. Sans Lassiter      Lassiter Trans. Group 
Jon Cheney       VC Traffic Engineering 
George Recktenwald      VC Traffic Engineering 
Chris Hardesty       ERAU 
Roxi Meade       FDOT 
Amy Sirmans       FDOT 
Noranne Downs      FDOT 
Susan Sadighi       FDOT 
Tracy Butler       Senator Anthony Hill Sr. 
Gary Hughes       Daytona Beach Fire Dept. 
Rene Rocky Rivera      BPAC/Holly Hill Citizen 
Tom Morrissey      VC Road & Bridge Dept. 
Randall Overton      US Coast Guard, District 7 
Jim White       VC Engineering 
Scott Martin       VC Engineering 
Paul McKitrick       Daytona Beach 
Bob Wallace       Tindale-Oliver & Associates 
Chris Boyer       VC Schools Transportation 
Jim Phillips        EC Driver 
Ann Venables       EC Driver 
Gary Huttmann      Burgess & Niple 
Jerry Brinton       VC Traffic Engineering 
Heather Blanck      Votran 
Big John       Press 
 
I. Call to Order / Roll Call / Determination of Quorum 
 

The meeting of Volusia County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) was called to 
order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairperson Joie Alexander.  The roll was called and it was determined 
that a quorum was present. 
 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. Announcement – BPAC of the Year Award 
 

Mr. Harris announced that the Florida Bicycle Association had awarded the MPO’s 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) the “BPAC of the Year” award.  He added that 
credit for this achievement was shared with MPO staff, and MPO and BPAC members. 
 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 3 of 12 

Chairperson Alexander noted that Mr. Decarie had been Chairman of the BPAC last year and 
Mr. Chuven was Chairman this year; both contributed greatly to the success of the committee. 
 
Commissioner Matusick noted that the Office of Florida’s Greenways and Trails have 
showcased the Spring to Spring trail on their poster for the month of October. 

 
Chairperson Alexander noted that Commissioner Marcello’s wife was taken to the hospital 
this morning for cardiac reasons and the MPO members observed a moment of silence. 
 
Chairperson Alexander invited Mayor Duffy to attend the November MPO Board meeting as 
this month’s meeting was her final one as Mayor.  She thanked Mayor Duffy for her hard work 
and contributions to the MPO. 
 

IV. Public Comment/Participation  
 
There were no public comments. 
 

V. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Approval of September 22, 2009 Meeting Minutes 
B. Approval of Treasurer’s Report 
C. Executive Committee Report 
D. Technical Coordinating Committee Report 
E. Citizens’ Advisory Committee Report 
F. Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
G. Central Florida MPO Alliance  
H. MPOAC Report 
I. TDLCB Appointments 
J. Communications Subcommittee Report 
K. Long Range Transportation Plan Subcommittee Report 
L. Review and Approval of Bicycle & Pedestrian School Safety Review Study – Phase 3C 
M. Review and Approval of Consultant Firm for the Bicycle & Pedestrian School Safety 

Study – Phase 4 
 
MOTION:    Council Member Kelly moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion 

was seconded by Commissioner Gilliland and carried unanimously. 
 

V. Action Items 
 

A) Review and Approval of Resolution 2009-24 Amending the FY 2009/10 – 2013/14 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
 
Mr. Welzenbach stated that Resolution 2009-24 had been amended since the TCC 
meeting.  At the October TCC meeting, it was discovered that Deltona would be unable 
to move forward with the Elkcam Boulevard repaving project.  The next project on the 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 4 of 12 

Priority List is Brentwood Drive in Daytona Beach.  The TCC and CAC recommended the 
Brentwood Drive project replace Deltona’s project on the list. 
 
MOTION:    Commissioner Plaskett moved approval of amended Resolution 2009-

24, amending the FY 2009/10 – 2013/14 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP).  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gilliland.  
A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mr. Welzenbach noted that two project bids had come in higher than anticipated, both 
for the 8th Avenue projects in Holly Hill.  The total overrun for both projects is 
estimated at $18,000.  At the September MPO Board meeting, the Board agreed to 
provide Port Orange with an additional $57,000 to cover their cost overruns.  The TCC 
and CAC recommended that the excess ARRA funds we currently have be used to 
cover the cost overruns for both Holly Hill projects. 
 
MOTION:    A motion was made to approve the use of excess ARRA funds to cover 

the cost overruns on the two 8th Street resurfacing projects in Holly 
Hill.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Costello and carried 
unanimously. 

 
B) Determination of the Allocation of the Remaining $213,000 in ACSA Funds  

 
Chairperson Alexander noted that the TCC recommended the intersection 
improvements at Washington Avenue/US 17 in Pierson be the next project funded 
with ACSA funds. 
 
Mayor Sowell stated that there was a Town Council meeting that evening and this will 
be discussed. 
 
MOTION: Mayor Sowell moved to approve the allocation of $213,000 in ACSA 

funding for the Washington Avenue/US 17 intersection improvements 
in Pierson.  County Chair Bruno seconded the motion and it carried 
unanimously. 

 
C) Determination of District Dedicated Revenues  

 
Mr. Welzenbach stated that at the MPOAC meeting, Assistant Secretary Debbie Hunt 
announced positive news concerning revenues: gas tax and doc stamp revenues have 
increased.  District Dedicated Revenues (DDR) come from the gas tax and FDOT is 
asking for direction from the MPO Board as to how to expend those gas taxes.  
Currently, the MPO’s number one priority is SR 415, which is broken into two 
segments.  A portion of the money that is being used to fund this project consists of 
CIGP (County Incentive Grant Program) funds which will require an anticipated local 
match of $5 million dollars ($2.5 million for Deltona and $2.5 million for Volusia 
County).  The TCC recommended that any DDR funds the MPO receives should go to 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 5 of 12 

decreasing the amount of the CIGP grant needed, thereby reducing the local match 
required.  If more than $10 million in DDR funds are received, the remaining funds 
should go to the US 1 intersections projects. 
 
Chairperson Alexander asked what would happen if the TIGER grant was awarded to 
SR 415. 
 
Mr. Welzenbach stated that letters of commitments were needed from Volusia County 
and Deltona for the $2.5 million dollar match, with the understanding that if the MPO 
receives DDR funds, the match amount would be reduced.  If the TIGER grant is also 
approved, SR 415 would be fully funded and no match will be required. 
 
MOTION:    County Chair Bruno moved to approve the utilization of any DDR funds 

allocated to Volusia County to reduce the amount of CIGP funds 
provided to SR 415, thereby reducing the local match requirements.  
Any additional DDR funds available would be allocated to the US 1 
intersections projects.  The motion was seconded by Council Member 
Wagner and carried unanimously.   

 
D) Determination Regarding Salary Increases for MPO Staff  

 
Mr. Welzenbach recommended that the MPO staff salaries remain the same and the 
that the funding allocated for staff salary increases remain in contingency. 
 
MOTION:    Council Member Hayman moved to approve no increase in the MPO 

staff salaries.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Kelly and 
carried unanimously. 

 
VI. Presentations, Status Reports, and Discussion Items 
 

A) Creation and Appointment of Mobility Plan Subcommittee of the TCC to Coordinate 
Local Mobility Plans  
 

Mr. Welzenbach noted that five TCC members volunteered for the Mobility Plan 
Subcommittee.  Undertaking both a mobility plan, as well as its coordination, will not 
be an easy task.  A letter from the Senator Bennett to Secretary Pelham regarding SB 
360 was provided in the agenda.  He continued to explain the issues with SB 360. 
 
Mr. Welzenbach pointed out that all of the volunteers for the Subcommittee were from 
the east side of Volusia County. 
 
Council Member Hayman thanked Mr. Welzenbach and Chairperson Alexander for 
continuing to study how our transportation planning is coordinated.  He added that he 
wholeheartedly supported the creation of the Mobility Plan Subcommittee.  There have 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 6 of 12 

been serious questions about the implementation of the plan but this process will be 
worked out if we all work together. 
Mayor Costello asked if any MPO’s have gone on record favoring one side or the other 
in regards to TCEA’s (Transportation Concurrency Exception Area), adding that the 
Volusia County MPO should go on record saying that the local communities know what 
is best as far as what the exception areas should be.  He emphasized that Tallahassee 
should be made aware of the MPO’s position. 
 
Mr. Welzenbach stated that the issue is not whether a part or all of a city must be a 
TCEA, the issue between Secretary Pelham and Senator Bennett is Secretary Pelham 
believes becoming a TCEA is a city’s prerogative while Senator Bennett thinks the city 
has no option – it is required to be a TCEA.   
 
Mayor Costello requested that the MPO send a letter to the Senate supporting 
Secretary Pelham’s belief that a city has the right to decide if it is a TCEA. 
 
Chairperson Alexander suggested that the Board members think about sending a letter 
and whether it is prudent for the MPO to take a position on the matter.   
 
Mayor Costello requested that a recommendation be made one way or the other. 
 

B) Presentation on the Veteran’s Memorial (Orange Avenue) Bridge PD&E Study  
 
Mr. Gerald Brinton, Volusia County Engineer, introduced the consultants making the 
presentation on the Veteran’s Memorial (Orange Avenue) Bridge PD&E Study: Ms. Ann 
Venables and Mr. Jim Phillips, E.C. Driver.  He gave a brief background on the project’s 
feasibility study.   
 
Ms. Venables gave a PowerPoint presentation on the Veteran’s Memorial Bridge PD&E 
study. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding bridge options and Federal regulations. 
 
Council Member Wagner asked if there was a possibility of partnering with Lillian Place 
in an effort to provide parking under the bridge in exchange for right of way.   
 
Ms. Venables replied that they are trying not to impact Lillian Place and because it is 
on the National Historic Register and would require a large amount of coordination 
with the State.  However, she added that the possibility could be explored. 
 
Council Member Wagner asked if they were considering any ideas on how to honor 
the veterans.  He suggested the possibility of putting a sculpture of a sleeping soldier 
on the west side of the bridge submerged in the water so that at low tide it would be 
visible to the public.  This could be a potential draw for people to the area. 
 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 7 of 12 

Mayor Northrup asked if a bridge could be closed for a period of time each day on a 
regular basis. 
 
Mr. Randall Overton, U.S. Coast Guard District 7, replied that a bridge could be closed.  
He recommended that someone from the MPO ask the Coast Guard to look at the 
schedule for the bridge and give recommendations for the times that it could be 
closed.  The Coast Guard would then begin a study to look at the waterway traffic and 
the roadway traffic and find the best solutions for both modes of transportation.  
Regulations can be put on the bridge but they will carry requirements for emergency 
vessels, for example, if an emergency vehicle needs to get through, the bridge must be 
opened. 
 
Mayor Northrup explained that he is asking for the bridge to remain open to waterway 
traffic and closed to vehicle traffic for a period of time overnight.  There is a bridge one 
block away, the Main Street Bridge.  Other than for special events, he asked if both 
bridges be closed to traffic year-round, overnight in an effort to save money.   
 
Mr. Overton noted that the bridge can be open all the time as far as the Coast Guard 
requirements go; however, it would be necessary to check with the fire and rescue 
departments to ensure this would not jeopardize their response times. 
 
Mr. Brinton explained a series of concerns that would have to be managed if the 
bridge span is left opened. 
 
Commissioner Gilliland stated that there might be an issue with the residents who live 
beachside – he asked how far onto the peninsula the landing of the bridge needed to 
go as the bridge gets higher?  He requested this question be part of the study as it is a 
public safety issue. 
 
Mayor Duffy asked what the cost difference was between the mid-level and high-rise 
bridges. 
 
Mr. Brinton replied between $10 to $12 million dollars. 
 
Council Member Hayman asked what the total cost of the study was. 
 
Mr. Brinton stated it could cost up to $750,000. 
 

C) Presentation on the Volusia Goods Movement Study  
 
Mr. Bob Wallace, Tindale-Oliver & Associates, gave a PowerPoint presentation on the 
Volusia County Freight Movement and Goods Study. 
 
Commissioner Matusick stated that the City of DeLand has been trying to redirect 
trucks off US 17/92.  The SIS (Strategic Intermodal System) facility was successfully 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 8 of 12 

moved from US 17/92 to SR 15A; however, it appears that the truck route indicated on 
the map went right through US 17/92. 
 
Mr. Cheney agreed with Commissioner Matusick and added that early on in the 
process, FDOT informed them that trucks must be able to remain on all State roads. 
 
Mayor Sowell stated that Pierson’s concern is Wal-Mart and the volume of trucks that 
will be on the US 17; the road will not be able to handle the traffic. 
 
Mr. Cheney stated that Volusia County shares Pierson’s concerns  which is why a 
lawsuit was filed against Wal-Mart.  Unfortunately, that lawsuit was lost.  The 
widening of US 17 is moving forward, however, there is no committed funding at this 
time. 
 
Mr. Welzenbach noted that this is supposed to be a positive truck route ordinance; 
truck routes are being identified, the study is not telling trucks which routes they 
cannot use.  He asked if this conflicted with FDOT’s standard of all State roads being 
truck routes.  Could SR 15A be identified as a truck route, in essence, then trucks 
would not be banned from using 17/92, but encouraged to use SR 15A instead. 
 
Mr. Cheney added that most truck drivers are already aware of the preferred routes. 
 
Council Member Kelly noted that Volusia County’s legal staff is currently evaluating the 
option of appealing the Wal-Mart verdict.   
 
Vice Mayor Martin stated that Volusia County and FDOT need to work with the 
municipalities so the truck route map does not conflict with what they are already 
doing. 
 
Commissioner Matusick stated that since this is a “preferred route” study, the routes 
should be reduced considerably, including US 17/92. 
 
Council Member Kelly asked what could be done to enhance truck route signs. 
 
Ms. Schoelzel replied that she would look into it. 
 
Council Member Kelly suggested the City of DeLand ask FDOT through a resolution to 
post signage suggesting 15A as the preferred truck route. 
 
Council Member Hayman indicated that he was in support of preferred truck routes.  
He expressed concern that if truck routes were designated as preferred, and then the 
truck drivers chose not to use those routes, what means of enforcement would be 
available to the cities; there really is no way to enforce truck routes.  He added that 
each jurisdiction has a responsibility to define their own preferred truck routes.  



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 9 of 12 

Council Member Hayman noted that there must be concurrency with the local 
jurisdictions. 
 
Mr. Cheney stated that Volusia County is relying on the TCC for feedback on the 
structure of the study as well as how to approach the individual cities.   
 
Mr. Welzenbach suggested giving the presentation to the city managers at their 
monthly meeting.   
 

D) Review and Recommendations on Draft Formatted Transportation Impact Analysis 
Guidelines Methodology Document  
 

Ms. Parlow stated that the LOS Subcommittee had come up with a list of definitions to 
be included in the TIA (Transportation Impact Analysis) Methodology document.  It has 
since been presented to the TCC for review and comment. 
 
Commissioner Matusick noted that she appreciated the definitions and suggested a 
quick reference page which defined acronyms that were used.  
 
Commissioner Vath requested confirmation that the Guidelines did not apply to Flagler 
Beach and Beverly Beach. 
 
Mr. Welzenbach explained that he had one meeting with the Flagler County 
representatives and is currently pursuing another one.  He confirmed that the 
Guidelines did not need to be adopted by Flagler Beach and Beverly Beach at this time.  
The LOS Subcommittee recommended sending a small contingent to meet with them 
to further discuss the Guidelines. 

 
E) FDOT Reports and ARRA Project Status Updates  

 
Ms. Schoelzel updated the MPO Board members on the status of the Stimulus projects.  
Four of the seven projects have had their bid openings.  CR 4139 in Lake Helen, the 
Dunn Avenue Extension and the SR 40 Multiuse Trail are still waiting to have their 
openings but are expected between late November and early December.  Currently, 
there is $229,131 left in the low bid balance which will go towards the Brentwood 
Drive project in Daytona Beach per the earlier motion by the MPO Board.  In reference 
to the State Stimulus projects, all notice-to-proceeds have been sent out and 
construction will begin in the next several months.  Three projects were awarded the 
State low bid remaining funding, all of which are located in other FDOT Districts.   
 
Ms. Schoelzel noted that FDOT has submitted a number of applications for High Speed 
Rail.  There were four total projects, one being for the Orlando – Tampa rail link and 
another for the Orlando – Miami link. 
 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 10 of 12 

She added that all the TIGER grant applications have been submitted and a final 
decision is expected on February 15.  FDOT has also submitted a transportation and 
community of systems preservation pilot program project (TCSP grant).  It is for the St. 
John’s River to the Sea Loop and there will be a meeting on November 6th.  
 
Mr. Welzenbach asked what the TCSP grant was for. 
 
Ms. Schoelzel replied it was for $9.2 million dollars – for the construction of the trail. 
 
Mayor Northrup asked about the status of the A1A resurfacing project. 
Ms. Schoelzel replied that she would have to check.  She thought it had a start date of 
July 2010. 
 
Commissioner Gilliland asked about the $18,000 for the 8th Street resurfacing projects 
in Holly Hill. 
 
Mr. Welzenbach stated that the City of Daytona Beach was aware of it and that he had 
received a letter from Mr. McKitrick agreeing to fund the project. 
 

VII. Executive Director’s Report 

 Role of MPO’s Long Range Transportation Plan in Reducing Greenhouse Gases and 
Preparing for the Effects of Climate Change  in Central Florida – Public Works Directors’ 
Meeting 

 
Mr. Welzenbach briefly explained the possible Federal legislation that could be 
upcoming regarding MPOs Long Range Transportation Plans and ways to incorporate 
plans, strategies and methods to reduce greenhouse gases.  He discussed the Peer 
Exchange he recently attended and the ideas which were brought forth, as well as 
some of methods that had been used to meet the potential new requirements which 
did not work well.  He noted that climate change has been evident in Volusia County in 
recent years.  He proposed that the MPO work with the local governments public work 
directors in an effort to identify facilities which are at risk to sea level rise and rank 
them based on their importance.  The next step would be to assess them according to 
risk.  After that is accomplished, the decisions as to what to do from that point can be 
made.  These ideas should be developed in tandem with the MPO’s Long Range 
Transportation Plan.    
 
Commissioner Matusick noted that climate change has not just affected the east coast 
of Volusia County with sea level rise and the storm water system.  The west side of 
Volusia County has experienced extreme levels of rain and flooding. 

 
VIII. MPO Member Comments 

 
Chairperson Alexander noted that she attended the National Transportation Policy briefing 
that was hosted by Metroplan Orlando.  The overall message from Washington was that they 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 11 of 12 

are eager to help us with SunRail, High Speed Rail and other projects but Secretary LaHood 
stated that we needed to get our acts together in Florida.  County Chair Bruno had asked 
Congresswoman Brown about helping our Senators and Legislators, to which she replied it 
was not her job to get them on board, it’s yours.  She encouraged everyone to work together.  
 
Mr. Welzenbach noted that a special session was going to be called. 
 
Chairperson Alexander added that Congresswoman Brown also stated the power of the wolf is 
in the pack.   
 
Council Member Kelly asked Mr. Welzenbach about the effects of the Early Learning Coalition 
of Flagler and Volusia dropping out of the TDLCB. 
 
Ms. Hinkley stated that she had contacted the Transportation Disadvantaged Commission,  
which stated that it is the Coalition’s choice to participate in the TDLCB.  She then contacted 
the Early Learning Coalition and was informed that the reason for their withdrawal from the 
TDLCB was because of budget concerns and continuous shifting of staff.  Ms. Hinkley noted 
that she would be contacting similar agencies which represent that population (children) to 
see if they would be interested in participating on the TDLCB Board. 
 
County Chair Bruno noted that the TDLCB would still keep the interest of the citizen group the 
Early Learning Coalition represents. 
 
Mayor Duffy thanked the MPO for the opportunity to serve on the MPO Board.  
 
Ms. Schoelzel announced that there will be a public information meeting on FDOT’s Work 
Program coming up. 
 

IX. Information Items 
 

X. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:49 a.m. 
       

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Volusia County MPO – Minutes  October 27, 2009 
Page 12 of 12 

      Volusia County 

     Metropolitan Planning Organization 
 
 
     _______________________________ 

      County Council Vice Chair Joie Alexander 
      Chairperson, Volusia County MPO 

CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned duly qualified and acting Recording Secretary of the Volusia County MPO, certified 
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the October 27, 2009 regular meeting 
of the Volusia County Metropolitan Planning Organization (VCMPO), approved and duly signed this 
24th day of November, 2009. 
 
_________________________________ 

Pamela Blankenship, Recording Secretary 

 
 


